
Page 1 of 2 

SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT 

1250 SAN CARLOS AVENUE, SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA 

 

CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CAC) 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

July 25, 2018 

(Amended August 29, 2018) 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: S. Appenrodt, J. Baker, A. Barnes, M. Buzbee (Chair), J. Galisatus, B. 

Gomez, A. Juarez, S. Koya (Vice Chair), N. Lacsamana, M. Lewis, F. Liu, R. Pico, R. Surles 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: M. Ross, P. Blankenship, Christiane Kwok, Christy Wegener, J. Epstein, M. 

Tolleson, J. Jest, C. Groves, J. Brook 

 

Chair Michelle Buzbee called the meeting to order at 6:31 pm and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SAMTRANS CAC MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2018 

Motion/Second: Koya/Baker 

Ayes:, J. Baker, A. Barnes, M. Buzbee (Chair), J. Galisatus, B. Gomez, A. Juarez, S. Koya 

(Vice Chair), N. Lacsamana, M. Lewis, R. Pico 

Absent: S. Appenrodt, F. Liu, R. Surles 

 

Frank Liu arrived at 6:35 pm. 

Steve Appenrodt arrived at 6:36 pm. 

Renita Surles arrived at 6:45 pm. 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

Brown Act and Advocacy on Ballot Measures 

Catherine Groves, Legal Counsel, gave a presentation that provided the fundamental 

points of the Brown Act and how it applies to communications among CAC members.  

Bob Gomez asked about having a telephone meeting with other Committee members. 

Ms. Groves said the Brown Act concerns prohibiting having a conversation about the 

business of the agency with a majority of the members (quorum) of a legislative body 

outside of a publicly noticed meeting. She added that if the topic does not concern 

the business of the agency, then the communication is not considered a meeting by 

the Brown Act. 

Vice Chair Sonny Koya asked about emailing fewer members than would constitute a 

quorum. Ms. Groves said that that communication could easily turn into a serial 

meeting if it gets forwarded to other members.  



SamTrans CAC Meeting Minutes 

July 25, 2018 

 
 

Page 2 of 5 

Ms. Groves said teleconferencing is allowed if a quorum is physically located within the 

jurisdiction of the legislative body. She said that the teleconferencing location must be 

noticed and open to the public, and that all votes must be taken by roll call.  

Ms. Groves said that meeting topics are limited to what is on the agenda. She said that 

even if a topic is related, it would be a violation of the Brown Act to discuss it if it is not 

on the agenda. She said that public comments that are off topic can be responded to 

briefly and then should be agendized if further discussion is needed. She noted that 

while legislative bodies have the opportunity to cure violations of the Act at another 

meeting, such violations contribute to unwanted negative publicity for the agency. 

Ms. Groves reviewed exceptions to the rule of not discussing an item that is not on the 

agenda. She confirmed for Ms. Lacsamana that a new topic someone wishes to discuss 

must be agendized at a new meeting. 

Mr. Gomez asked which entities are subject to the Brown Act. Ms. Groves confirmed 

that the Act applies to public entities in California. 

Ms. Groves confirmed for Chair Buzbee that an ad hoc committee would not quality as 

a standing committee. 

Ms. Groves gave a presentation clarifying the difference between advocating or 

opposing a ballot measure representing one’s personal beliefs versus appearing to 

represent the position of your agency. She referred specifically to the resolution passed 

in July on the Get Us Moving (GUM) investment plan, which will culminate in a ballot 

measure asking for half-cent sales tax increase to address traffic congestion in San 

Mateo County. 

She said that the laws apply to Board, staff, and advisory committees, including the 

CAC. She said that publicly funded resources (phones, fax machines, etc.) cannot be 

used to promote voting for or against something. She said that public resources can, 

however, be used to provide information and education about issues in a neutral, 

balanced manner. She said that members are allowed to campaign in a private 

capacity - that is, not representing the agency – not using public time or resources. 

Richard Pico asked if a SamTrans employee could donate money to the District and Ms. 

Groves said yes, as long as it was in the employee’s capacity as a private citizen and as 

long as he was not asked to make a donation. He asked if the Board of Supervisors 

could poll the public to see if a measure were going to pass. Jessica Epstein, 

Government and Community Affairs Officer, said that going forward, the District’s role in 

the measure is over. 

Chair Buzbee said asked if CAC members could be involved in a campaign. Ms. Groves 

said they could if they did so in their own private capacity. She added they can identify 

themselves as Committee members, but that they are not speaking on behalf of the 

CAC. She clarified for Mr. Pico that while he could say that he advocates for a certain 

measure, he could not say that the CAC as a whole is for or against that measure. 

Vice Chair Koya asked about the majority of votes needed to pass a ballot measure. 

Ms. Epstein said that the half-cent sales tax measure would require a two-thirds majority 

to pass and that Proposition 6 would require a 51 percent majority vote. 

Ms. Groves confirmed for Mr. Pico that if he had email communications with another 

Committee member, that is not considered a Brown Act public meeting.  



SamTrans CAC Meeting Minutes 

July 25, 2018 

 
 

Page 3 of 5 

Market Segmentation Study Key Findings 

Julian Jest, Market Research Specialist, presented an overview of his research on the 

composition of SamTrans bus ridership as well as the reasons that non-riders or former 

riders choose not to use transit.  

Vice Chair Koya said he was impressed that 70 percent of riders said they were still 

willing to ride if the trip were 10 minutes longer. 

Ms. Lacsamana said she appreciated the study. She suggested that in the future, riders 

should be polled about how they safe they feel on transit. 

John Baker said he thought it was interesting that only 30 percent of survey respondents 

said they thought riding transit was cheaper than driving a car. Frank Liu said that it was 

70 percent of the 28 percent of riders who would continue to ride if the trip duration 

increased, so the correct figure is 19.6 percent of respondents instead of 30 percent. 

Chair Buzbee asked why the statistics in the presentation didn’t show all ethnicities. Mr. 

Jest said the slides only show the top three ethnicities. She asked why ridership is shown 

to decrease the longer someone has lived in the County. Ms. Ross said she presumed 

that some prior riders may have moved to less expensive areas, which may be a 

contributing factor to lower ridership. 

Coastside Transit Study 

Millie Tolleson, Principal Planner, summarized the study being considered for adoption 

by the SamTrans Board, which examines the current and future transit needs of 

Coastside residents. 

Vice Chair Koya said some Coastside residents had requested bus shelters in the past. 

He asked if shelters were being considered. 

Jason Galisatus asked if reducing bus size would result in a cost savings. Ms. Tolleson 

said bus size doesn’t save money. She said they were exploring using microtransit or on-

demand service, which does use smaller vehicles and would generate a cost savings. 

Mr. Gomez commented on the lack of bus shelters in East Palo Alto. Ms. Tolleson said 

the upcoming business plan includes an analysis of bus stops and amenities, and said 

that the amenities such as shelters depend on the ridership of a stop. Ms. Ross 

concurred that certain standards must be met for a stop to quality for a bus pad or 

shelter. 

CAC RETREAT 

Chair Buzbee said that she and Vice Chair Koya had been co-facilitating the plan for 

the CAC retreat. She said the proposed time is 4:00-6:00 pm on Wednesday, September 

26, prior to the CAC meeting beginning at 6:30 pm. Ms. Ross said she would reserve the 

Auditorium.  

Allie Juarez asked Chair Buzbee if she and Vice Chair Koya would be soliciting ideas for 

the agenda from the Committee. Chair Buzbee said that all suggestions were welcome 

and members should email them to the CAC secretary. 

 

  



SamTrans CAC Meeting Minutes 

July 25, 2018 

 
 

Page 4 of 5 

SAMTRANS STAFF UPDATE 

SamTrans Performance Statistics for June 2018 

Ms. Ross summarized the June performance statistics: 

Average Weekday Ridership – 33,320 

On-Time Performance – 78.587% 

Complaints – 178 

MBSC – 25,470 

Tokens – 15,537 (Adult)/14,986 (Youth) 

Did Not Operate – 128 

Vice Chair Koya noted that the youth token numbers were down due to school being 

out. Nancy Lacsamana said that adult token numbers were almost half of what they 

were for June 2017. Ms. Ross said she would check the numbers and report back to the 

Committee. 

 

CAC MEMBER COMMENTS/REQUESTS 

Mr. Liu recommended not having the KX route stop at the San Bruno BART station during 

rush hours. Patrick Blankenship, Manager of Scheduling and Planning, said they would 

be doing an evaluation of the merging of the KX and 398 routes. Ms. Ross said that 

there are KX patrons that use the San Bruno BART stop. Mr. Liu suggested that another 

alternative, especially during rush hours, would be to have the KX exit US-101 at I-380 

instead of at San Bruno Avenue. Mr. Baker said if the KX exit switched to I-380, then it 

would miss the San Bruno Caltrain station stop.  

 

Vice Chair Koya discussed some of the shortcomings of merging the KX and 398 routes. 

Ms. Ross said that by expanding Route 398, the District is providing more service to more 

people. Vice Chair Koya said he felt there was a lack of public outreach prior to the 

merge of KX and 398. 

 

Vice Chair Koya expressed his concern that there was no public outreach prior to the 

merge of KX and 398. He said that many KX riders who are dependent on the service to 

get them to their jobs and school have been adversely affected by the service 

schedule changes and were not consulted about it beforehand. Ms. Ross explained 

that the combining of the routes actually results in an expansion of service. She noted 

that some of the route information riders were receiving from various channels was not 

accurate. Mr. Blankenship added that he preferred to use stop-level signage to inform 

the public about route schedule changes, saying that that was more effective than 

holding public meetings. 

 

Mr. Liu expressed his gratitude for having had the opportunity to be a part of the 

Committee for the last 26 months. He noted that Uber and Lyft are the first choice for 

east-west transit and thought that the District should try to become competitive in 

serving this sector.  

 

Mr. Baker said he would like to have a statement of support item for the upcoming 

traffic congestion ballot measure on the next meeting agenda. Ms. Epstein said to wait 

until the measure has been assigned a ballot number before taking any action. 



SamTrans CAC Meeting Minutes 

July 25, 2018 

 
 

Page 5 of 5 

Ms. Ross suggested putting comments of support in the minutes rather than approving a 

resolution. Chair Buzbee said she would check with Ms. Ross offline about the proper 

procedure to take action on the measure. 

 

Staff and members congratulated Mr. Liu, who is leaving the Committee to start school 

at UC Berkeley in August.  

 

LIAISON REPORTS 

SamTrans Board of Directors 

Chair Buzbee summarized highlights of the July Board meeting, including the unanimous 

approval of the ordinance to impose a sales tax to implement the San Mateo County 

Congestion Relief Plan. She said she would update the Committee on the the ad hoc 

committee formed to discuss the negotiating agreement between the District, 

Facebook, and Plenary Concessions. She said that Jim Hartnett, General 

Manager/CEO, had announced the release of the SamTrans mobile app in September.  

SamTrans Accessibility Advisory Committee 

Chair Buzbee asked the membership if they wanted to continue reporting out on this 

committee since the monthly accessibility and paratransit report is available in the 

agenda packets on the Board calendar website. Hearing no objections, she said that 

the accessibility advisory committee report would no longer be on the CAC agenda. 

She said she wanted to add regular updates on the Community Engagement 

Committee meetings, beginning with the August 29 agenda. 

NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be held August 29, 2018 at 6:30 pm, 1250 San Carlos Avenue, 

Bacciocco Auditorium, 2nd Floor, San Carlos, CA. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:32 pm. 


